


• Accept the resignation of two ESP employee

3. Financial Reports - February 2022

4. Accounts Payable Bills

Unfinished Business 

1. Approve the Following Board of Education Policies

Policy Title 

2:20 Powers and Duties of the School Board; Indemnification 

2: 105 Ethics and Gift Ban 

2:110 

2:120 

2:150 

2:220 

2:260 

3:40 

3:50 

3:60 

4:60 

4:80 

4:110 

4:120 

4:150 

4:160 

4:165 

4:170 

4:175 

5:10 

5:20 

5:30 

5:50 

5:90 

5:100 

5:120 

5:125 

5:150 

5:185 

5:200 

5:210 

5:220 

5:250 

5:260 

5:330 

6:15 

6:20 

6:50 

6:60 

6:120 

6:130 

Qualifications, Term, and Duties of Board Officers 

Board Member Development 

Committees 

School Board Meeting Procedure 

Uniform Grievance Procedure 

Superintendent 

Administrative Personnel Other Than the Superintendent 

Administrative Responsibility of the Building Principal 

Purchases and Contracts 

Accounting and Audits 

Transportation 

Food Services 

Facility Management and Building Programs 

Environmental Quality of Buildings and Grounds 

Awareness and Prevention of Child Sexual Abuse and Grooming Behaviors 

Safety 

Convicted Child Sex Offender; Screening; Notifications 

Equal Employment Opportunity and Minority Recruitment 

Workplace Harassment Prohibited 

Hiring Process and Criteria 

Drug- and AlcohoIFree Workplace; E-Cigarette, Tobacco 

Abused and Neglected Child Reporting 

Staff Development Program 

Employee Ethics; Conduct; and Conflict of Interest 

Personal Technology and Social Media; Usage and Conduct 

Personnel Records 

Family and Medical Leave 

Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissa 

Resignations 

Substitute Teachers 

Leaves of Absence 

Student Teachers 

Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves 

School Accountability 

School Year Calendar and Day 

School Wellness 

Curriculum Content 

Education of Children with Disabilities 

Program for the Gifted 

Page 2 of3 

Mount Prospect School District 57 is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as well as Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to 
allow them to attend and/or participate, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to 
promptly contact Dr. Mary Gorr at (847) 394-7300. 



6:135 

6:180 

 

6:340 

7:10 

7:20 

7:30 

7:50 

7:60 

7:70 

7:80 

7:150 

7:160 

7:165 

7:180 

7:190 

7:200 

7:210 

7:240 

7:250 

7:260 

7:290 

7:310 

7:340 

7:345 

8:70 

8:100 

Accelerated Placement Program 

Extended Instructional Programs 

Student Testing and Assessment Program 

Equal Educational Opportunities 

Harassment of Students Prohibited 

Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer 

School Admissions and Student Transfers To and From Non-District Schools 

Residence 

Attendance and Truancy 

Release Time for Religious Instruction/ Observance 

Agency and Police Interviews 

Student Appearance 

School Uniforms 

Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment 

Student Behavior 

Suspension Procedures 

Expulsion Procedures 

Conduct Code for Participants in Extracurricular Activities 

Student Support Services 

Exemption from Physical Education 

Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention 

Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools 

Student Records 

Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security 

Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities 

Relations with Other Organizations and Agencies 

Community Comments 

New Business 

2. Approve FY23 Preliminary Staffing Plan

Board Discussion 

Closed Session 

Adjournment 

Page 3 of3 

Mount Prospect School District 57 is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as well as Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to 
allow them to attend and/or participate, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to 
promptly contact Dr. Mary Gorr at (847) 394-7300. 





























Board Minutes February 17, 2022 Business Meeting Consent Agenda Item 1 

Page 6 

7:290 Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention 
7:310 Restrictions on Publications; Elementary Schools 

7:340 Student Records 
7:345 Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security 

8:70 Accommodating Individuals with Disabilities 
8:100 Relations with Other Organizations and Agencies 

Presdient Kowalczyk asked if any Board members had any questions but there was none. She said policies 

would be on the agenda for the March 17 meeting. 

Board Discussion 

None 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Kowalczyk entertained a motion to 

adjourn the meeting. Member Chung moved, seconded by Member Ciok, to adjourn the meeting. Roll call vote 

resulted as follows 

Yes: Bennet-Kill, Chung, Ciok, Fay, Kobus, Kowalczyk 

No: None Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m. 

Roberta Flack, Secretary Eileen B. Kowalczyk, President 

Date of approval: March 17, 2022







Board Minutes February 24, 2022 Business Meeting Consent Agenda Item I 

Page3 

► The first to address the Board believes there is confusion with the TRO and she does not understand the

last 25 minutes of discussing all the what if's. It would be good to refocus on what our children need

not COVID numbers.

► The next person from the audience addressed the Board for a second time about her disapproval of the

mask mandate. She continued to discuss testing and her opinions of our curriculum.

► An audience member shared her disapproval of the discussion by the Board and that the word 'power'

comes up too many times. She thanked the Board for their discussion but would like to close the gaps.

► The final to speak believes the Board should work with the parents on their decisions.

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Kowalczyk entertained a motion to 

adjourn the meeting. Member Kobus moved, seconded by Member Ciok, to adjourn the meeting. Roll call vote 

resulted as follows 

Yes: Bennet-Kill, Chung, Ciok, Fay, Kobus, Kowalczyk 

No: None Motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:39 p.m. 

Roberta Flack, Secretary Eileen B. Kowalczyk, President 

Date of approval: __ ..:..:M=ar
....,.

c
.,.
h

_.
1
....,
7

.._
. =20""'2""'2'--_ 



Consent Agenda Item 2 

Mount Prospect School District 57 
Board of Education 

PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS 

March 17, 2022 
POLICY REFERENCE 5:30 

That the Board of Education accept the resignation of the following adminsitrative employee: 

Name 
Paul Suminski 

Position 
Principal 

Location 
Lincoln 

Effective Date 
06/30/22 

That the Board of Education approves the emplovment oftbe following certified indj idual: 

Name Position 
Higgs, Dolores Bilingual Interventionist 

*Salary includes Board paid TRS

Location 
Westbrook 

Hire Date 
02/18/22 

Salary 
*$62,150 

That the Board of Education approve a leave of absence for the following certified employee: 

Name 
Kristen Manteuffel 

Position 
Emichment Teacher 

Location 
Lions Park 

Effective Date 
End of 2021-22 School Year 

That the Board of Education approves the honorable dismissal of the following certified employees: 

Name 
Maureen Fallon 
Jennifer Licato 
Ryan Nielsen 

Position 
Kindergarten Teacher .5 FTE 
Kindergarten Teacher .5 FTE 
PE Teacher .2 FTE 

Location 
Westbrook 
Westbrook 
Westbrook 

Effective Date 
06/01/22 
06/01/22 
06/01/22 

That the Board of Education accept the resignatlon from the following certified emplovees: 

Name Position 
Patricia Diamantopoulos World Language .5 FTE 
Rebecca Hill Special Education 
Amanda Trame Special Education 

Location 
Lincoln 
Westbrook 
Fairview 

Effective Date 
End of2021-22 School Year 
End of2021-22 School Year 
08/1/22 

That the Board of Education approves the employment of the following ESP individual: 

Position Name 
Mavreen Dunlavy Instructional Assistant 

Location 
Lions Park 

Hire Date 
02/24/22 

Salary 
$17.63 

That the Board of Education accepts the resignation of the following ESP employees: 

� 

Patricia Diamantopoulos 
Thomas O'Rourke 

Position Location 
Instructional Assistant .5 FTE Lincoln 
HR Coordinator Admin 

Effective Date 
End of2021-22 School Year 
03/17/22 



















Consent Agenda Item 4 

MOUNT PROSPECT SCHOOL DISTRICT 57 

Accounts Payable Bills 

March 17, 2022 

In accordance with Board Policy 4:50 Operational Services-Payment' 

Procedures, this order authorizes administration to pay the following 

accounts payable bills totaling $566,814.83 as approved at the Board of 

Education meeting held on the date referenced above. 

Reviewed by: 
------------------

Board of Education Member 

Approved by: _________________ _ 
Board of Education President 

Attested by: 
-----------------

Bo a rd of Education Secretary 





































 Unfinished Business Item 1 

 MEMORANDUM 

 To:  Members, Board of Education 
 From:  Mary Gorr 
 Re:  Policies Second Read 
 Date:  March 17, 2022 

 The following policies went before the Board of Education for First Read on February 17. The Board is asked to approve 
 these policies at Second Read on March 17, 2022. 

 Policy 
 # 

 Title  Recommendation 

 2:20  Powers and Duties of the School 
 Board; Indemnification 

 Policy, Legal References, and Cross References are updated. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 
 2:105  Ethics and Gift Ban  The Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 2:110  Qualifications, Term, and Duties of 
 Board Officers 

 Legal References, and Administrative Procedure References are 
 updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 2:120  Board Member Development  The policy is updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 2:150  Committees  The policy is unchanged. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 2:220  School Board Meeting Procedure  The policy is updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 2:260  Uniform Grievance Procedure  The policy and Legal References are updated for continuous 
 improvement. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 3:40  Superintendent  The policy, legal References, and Cross References are updated in 
 response to the General Assembly’s focus on resolving Educator 
 Misconduct. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 3:50  Administrative Personnel Other Than 
 the Superintendent 

 The Cross References are updated. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 



 3:60  Administrative Responsibility of the 
 Building Principal 

 The Legal References, Cross References are updated. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 4:60  Purchases and Contracts  The policy and Legal References updated in response to the Coal Tar 
 Sealant Disclosure Act. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 4:80  Accounting and Audits  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 4:110  Transportation  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 4:120  Food Services  Policy is unchanged. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 4:150  Facility Management and Building 
 Programs 

 Policy is unchanged. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 4:160  Environmental Quality of Buildings 
 and Grounds 

 Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 4:165  Awareness and Prevention of Child 
 Sexual Abuse and Grooming 
 Behaviors 

 Policy is new. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 4:170  Safety  Policy is updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 4:175  Convicted Child Sex Offender; 
 Screening; Notifications 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:10  Equal Employment Opportunity and 
 Minority Recruitment 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:20  Workplace Harassment Prohibited  Policy and Legal References  are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:30  Hiring Process and Criteria  Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:50  Drug- and AlcoholFree Workplace; 
 E-Cigarette, Tobacco, and Cannabis 
 Prohibition 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 2  |  Page 



 5:90  Abused and Neglected Child 
 Reporting 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:100  Staff Development Program  Policy and Legal References  are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:120  Employee Ethics; Conduct; and 
 Conflict of Interest 

 Legal References, Cross References, and Administrative Procedure 
 Reference are updated in response to legislative updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 5:125  Personal Technology and Social 
 Media; Usage and Conduct 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:150  Personnel Records  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 5:185  Family and Medical Leave  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 5:200  Terms and Conditions of 
 Employment and Dismissal 

 Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 5:210  Resignations  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 5:220  Substitute Teachers  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:250  Leaves of Absence  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS, but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 5:260  Student Teachers  The policy is unchanged. The footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 5:330  Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and 
 Leaves 

 Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 6:15  School Accountability  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 6:20  School Year Calendar and Day  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 6:50  School Wellness  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 6:60  Curriculum Content  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 3  |  Page 



 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 6:120  Education of Children with 
 Disabilities 

 Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS, but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 6:130  Program for the Gifted  Policy unchanged. Footnotes are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 6:135  Accelerated Placement Program  Policy, Legal References and footnotes are updated in response to 
 legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS, but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 6:180  Extended Instructional Programs  Policy updated. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 6:340  Student Testing and Assessment 
 Program 

 Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:10  Equal Educational Opportunities  Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:20  Harassment of Students Prohibited  Policy and Legal References are updated in response to legislation. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:30  Student Assignment and 
 Intra-District Transfer 

 Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 7:50  School Admissions and Student 
 Transfers To and From Non-District 
 Schools 

 The policy is unchanged. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 7:60  Residence  The policy and legal references are updated in response to five-year 
 review and legislative changes. 

 Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 7:70  Attendance and Truancy  Legal References, Cross References, and Administrative Procedure 
 References update in response to legislative updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 7:80  Release Time for Religious 
 Instruction/ Observance 

 Policy updated in response to legislative changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:150  Agency and Police Interviews  Policy updated in response to legislative changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:160  Student Appearance  Policy updated in response to legislation. 

 4  |  Page 



 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 7:180  Prevention of and Response to 
 Bullying, Intimidation, and 
 Harassment 

 Policy and legal references are updated in response to legislative 
 changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:190  Student Behavior  Policy, legal references, and cross-references are updated for 
 continuous improvement. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:200  Suspension Procedures  Policy and legal references are updated in response to legislative 
 changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:210  Expulsion Procedures  Policy is updated in response to legislative changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:240  Conduct Code for Participants in 
 Extracurricular Activities 

 Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 7:250  Student Support Services  The policy and legal references are updated to legislative updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:260  Exemption from Physical Education  Policy is updated in response to legislative updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS but maintain current language 
 specific to District 57. 

 7:290  Suicide and Depression Awareness 
 and Prevention 

 Policy and legal references are updated in response to legislative 
 updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:310  Restrictions on Publications; 
 Elementary Schools 

 Policy and legal references are updated in response to legislative 
 updates. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 7:340  Student Records  Recommendation is to maintain current policy, with language specific 
 to District 57. 

 7:345  Use of Educational Technologies; 
 Student Data Privacy and Security 

 Legal references are updated in response to legislative changes. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 8:70  Accommodating Individuals with 
 Disabilities 

 Policy is unchanged, but the cross-references are updated for 
 continuous improvement. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 8:100  Relations with Other Organizations 
 and Agencies 

 Policy is unchanged. 

 Recommendation is to accept PRESS. 

 * IASB policies are on an automatic 5-year review cycle regardless of any legislative change. 

 5  |  Page 

















































































































































































16. In all schools, the curriculum includes instruction as determined by the Superintendent or designee on 

Black History, including the history of the pre-enslavement of Black people from 3,000 BCE to AD 

1619, the African slave trade, slavery in America, the study of the reasons why Black people came to 

be enslaved, the vestiges of slavery in this country, the study of the American civil rights renaissance, 

as well as the struggles and contributions of African-Americans.

17. In all schools, instruction during courses as determined by the Superintendent or designee on 

disability history, awareness, and the disability rights movement.

18. Beginning in the fall of 2022, in all schools, instruction as determined by the Superintendent or 

designee on the events of Asian American history, including the history of Asian Americans in 

Illinois and the Midwest, as well as the contributions of Asian Americans toward advancing civil 

rights from the 19th century onward, which must include the contributions made by individual Asian 

Americans in government and the arts, humanities, and sciences, as well as the contributions of Asian 

American communities to the economic, cultural, social, and political development of the United 

States.

19. In kindergarten through grade 8, education must be available to students concerning effective 

methods of preventing and avoiding traffic injuries related to walking and bicycling.

LEGAL REF.: Pub. L. No. 108-447, Section 111 of Division J, Consolidated Appropriations Act of 

2005. 

Pub. L. No. 110-385, Title II, 122 stat. 4096 (2008), Protecting Children in the 21st Century Act. 

47 C.F.R. §54.520. 

5 ILCS 465/3 and 465/3a. 

20 ILCS 2605/2605-480. 

105 ILCS 5/2-3.80(e) and (f), 5/10-20.73 (final citation pending), 5/10-23.13, 5/27-3, 5/27-3.5, 5/27-5, 5/27-6, 

5/27-6.5, 5/27-7, 5/27-12, 5/27-12.1, 5/27-13.1, 5/27-13.2, 5/27-20.08, 5/27-20.3, 

5/27-20.4, 5/27-20.5, 5/27-20.7, 5/27-20.8, 5/27-21, 5/27-22, 5/27-23.3, 5/27-23.4, 

5/27-23.7, 5/27-23.8, 5/27-23.10, 5/27-23.11, 5/27-23.15, 5/27-24.1, and 5/27-24.2. 

105 ILCS 110/3, Comprehensive Health Education Program. 

105 ILCS 435/, Vocational Education Act. 

625 ILCS 5/6-408.5, Ill. Vehicle Code. 

23 Ill.Admin.Code §§1.420, 1.425, 1.430, and 1.440. 

CROSS REF.: 

ADOPTED: 

6:60 

4:165 (Awareness and Prevention of Child Sex Abuse and Grooming Behaviors), 6:20 

(School Year Calendar and Day), 6:40 (Curriculum Development), 6:70 (Teaching About 

Religions), 6:235 (Access to Electronic Networks), 7:180 (Prevention of and Response to 

Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment), 7:185 (Teen Dating Violence Prohibited), 7:190 

(Student Behavior), 7:260 (Exemption from Physical Education) 

March 17, 2022 

Page 3 of3 










































































































	2 24 22 Closed Min.pdf
	Board Packet 3 17 22.pdf
	Board_Memo_03-17-22 Reg Mtg agenda - Google Docs.pdf
	Board Packet 3 17 22.pdf




